Cabinet

Tuesday 12 July 2011

PRESENT:

Councillor Mrs Pengelly, in the Chair.

Councillor Fry, Vice Chair.

Councillors Ball, Bowyer, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Ricketts and Wigens.

Also in attendance: Barry Keel (Chief Executive), Ian Gallin (Assistant Chief Executive), Mark Grimley (Assistant Director for HR and Organisational Development), Anthony Payne (Director for Development and Regeneration), Phil Mitchell (Private Sector Housing and Regeneration Manager), Paul Barnard (Assistant Director for Development), Jonathan Bell (Head of Development Planning), Peter Hearn (Urban Planning Co-ordinator) and Mike Artherton (Parking and CCTV Manager).

Apologies for absence: Councillors Monahan

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.45 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Cabinet will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

15. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

In accordance with the Code of Conduct, the following declarations of interest were made, as follows –

Name	Minute	Reason	Interest
Councillor	Minute 24 and 27 -	Husband is a	Personal and
Sam Leaves	Corporate, Education, Social Care and	taxi driver.	prejudicial.
	Wheelchair Accessible Taxis Tender Ward.		
	Minute 25 and 28 - Corporate, Education,		
	Social Care and Wheelchair Accessible		
	Minibuses and Coaches Tender Ward.		

16. MINUTES

Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2011 are confirmed as a correct record.

17. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public, for this meeting.

18. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

There were no Chair's urgent business.

19. REVISED PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING ASSISTANCE POLICY

Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic Development) introduced the report and stated that the policy focuses on assisting people living in poor standard accommodation.

Cabinet <u>agreed</u> the revised Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy.

20. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY AND PLYMOUTH INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic Development) introduced the report and stated that this would drive forward growth for the city.

Cabinet members raised concerns with the first recommendation and proposed that a further recommendation be added as 5 below.

Agreed to -

- I. approve the introduction of a Community Infrastructure Levy for Plymouth, which once adopted will replace the Council's tariff based approach as the primary means by which pooled contributions are secured to mitigate the impacts of development;
- 2. delegate authority to the Assistant Director for Development and Regeneration (Planning Services), in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic Development, to prepare a Preliminary Draft Community Infrastructure Charging Schedule in consultation with appropriate stakeholders (including the Cabinet Member for Transport and Assistant Director for Finance, Assets and Efficiencies);
- 3. instruct officers to report the Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule to Cabinet following engagement with stakeholders on the Preliminary Draft;
- 4. approve the publication of the Plymouth Infrastructure Needs Assessment as an evidence base document, and delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic Development to approve the publication of updates to the Infrastructure Needs Assessment in a periodic basis, in consultation with appropriate stakeholders;
- 5. instruct officers to report back to a future meeting of Cabinet with proposals for using a meaningful proportion of CIL within the neighbourhoods in which it is raised.

This recommendation was proposed by Councillor Pengelly and seconded by Councillor Michael Leaves.

21. REVIEW OF LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic Development) introduced the report and stated that this is a three year project plan setting out the planning documents that the City Council will prepare as part of the Local Development Framework.

<u>Agreed</u> that approve the revision to Plymouth City Council's Local Development Scheme, to take effect from 26 July 2011, pursuant to Regulation 11 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004, as amended.

22. CAPITAL INVESTMENT PAYROLL ENTERPRISE PLATFORM

Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and People) introduced the report and requests capital approval to upgrade the existing system and consolidate all business applications into one single application.

Agreed that Cabinet recommend to Full Council to approve the addition to the capital programme of £1.9 million over 2011/12 and 2012/13 for the implementation of this project.

23. MODERNISATION AND REFURBISHMENT OF WESTERN APPROACH CAR PARK

Councillor Wigens (Cabinet Member for Transport) introduced the report which seeks approval for £350k 'invest to save' capital scheme to modernise and refurbish the Western Approach car park.

Agreed that Cabinet recommend this capital scheme to Full Council on 25 July 2011.

(This item was moved up the agenda to facilitate good management of the meeting).

24. CORPORATE, EDUCATION, SOCIAL CARE AND WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE TAXIS TENDER AWARD

Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and People) introduced the report and it was raised that the Cabinet member on the report should be Councillor Jordan and not Councillor Sam Leaves as stated.

<u>Agreed</u> that the two contracts for the provision of Corporate, Education, Social Care and Wheelchair Accessible Taxis be awarded according to the report's recommendations. The contracts will be for up to seven years (five years initially with an option for the authority to extend for up to a further two years subject to the providers' satisfactory performance).

(Councillor Sam Leaves declared an interest in the above item and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of the item).

25. CORPORATE, EDUCATION, SOCIAL CARE AND WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE MINIBUSES AND COACHES TENDER AWARD

Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and People) introduced the report and it was raised that the Cabinet member on the report should be Councillor Jordan and not Councillor Sam Leaves as stated.

<u>Agreed</u> that the two contracts for the provision of Corporate, Education, Social Care and Wheelchair Accessible Minibuses and Coaches be awarded according to the report's recommendations. The contracts will be for up to seven years (five years initially with an option for the authority to extend for up to a further two years subject to the providers' satisfactory performance).

(Councillor Sam Leaves declared an interest in the above item and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of the item).

26. **EXEMPT BUSINESS**

Agreed that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

27. CORPORATE, EDUCATION, SOCIAL CARE AND WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE TAXIS TENDER AWARD (E3)

The Cabinet received the report. See minute 24 above.

(Councillor Sam Leaves declared an interest in the above item and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of the item).

28. CORPORATE, EDUCATION, SOCIAL CARE AND WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE MINIBUSES AND COACHES TENDER AWARD (E3)

The Cabinet received the report. See minute 25 above.

(Councillor Sam Leaves declared an interest in the above item and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of the item).